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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We have Land Use

          3  items, plus we have a Business Improvement District

          4  to be presented to everybody.

          5                 All right, ladies and gentlemen, one

          6  of the items on today's agenda is Intro. 0923 of the

          7  Year 2001, which is a local law to amend the

          8  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

          9  relation to the establishment of the east

         10  Mid-Manhattan Business Improvement District.

         11                 I am required by law to read a

         12  statement into the record and then we'll proceed to

         13  the hearing.

         14                 On April 25th, 2001, this Committee

         15  adopted the resolution setting today for the date to

         16  hear all those interested in the establishment of

         17  the BID. After we hear from all witnesses, we will

         18  adjourn the hearing for at least 30 days, which is a

         19  statutorily mandated time during which property

         20  owners objected to the establishment of a BID may

         21  file objections.

         22                 In the absence of significant

         23  objections, if the Committee and the Council can

         24  answer the following four questions affirmatively it

         25  may, I stress the term may, adopt the local law
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          2  establishing the BID.

          3                 The four questions we must be

          4  prepared to answer are as follows:

          5                 1) Were all the notices of hearing

          6  for all hearings required to be held published and

          7  mailed as required by the law of the State of New

          8  York?

          9                 2) Does all the real property within

         10  the district's boundaries benefit from the

         11  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

         12  provided by law?

         13                 3) Is all real property benefitted by

         14  the district included within the district?

         15                 And, finally, is the establishment of

         16  the district in the best interest of the public?

         17                 If the Committee finds in the

         18  affirmative on these four questions and number of

         19  objections required to prevent the creation of the

         20  BID are not filed, then the legislation can be

         21  adopted.

         22                 Following our hearing on the BID, the

         23  Committee will consider three Land Use items.

         24                 Having said that now, and I know that

         25  the reading of that statement excited everybody's
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          2  interest, so if everybody would just remain calm, I

          3  would invite DBS to testify.

          4                 DBS.

          5                 MR. GLATTER: Mr. Chairman, members of

          6  the Committee, to continue with the excitement, my

          7  name is George Glatter, I am Executive Director of

          8  the Neighborhood Development Division of the

          9  Department of Business Services.

         10                 DBS supports the establishment of the

         11  East Mid-Manhattan Business Improvement District in

         12  the Borough of Manhattan.

         13                 Geographically, the proposed district

         14  encompasses the eastern portion of the midtown area,

         15  which includes Madison Avenue, between 53rd and 57th

         16  Streets, Park Avenue, between 54th and 61st Streets,

         17  Lexington Avenue and Third Avenue between 49th and

         18  63rd Street, Second Avenue between 56th and 60th

         19  Streets, and the mid-blocks between Madison Avenue

         20  and Third Avenue from 54th to 57th Streets,

         21  mid-blocks between Park and third avenue, from 57th

         22  to 61st Street, and the mid-blocks between Second

         23  Avenue and 56th Street and 60th Street.

         24                 Services to be provided in the

         25  district include street and sidewalk maintenance,
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          2  public safety and security, marketing and promotion,

          3  beautification, homeless outreach, traffic and

          4  transportation management, administration and other

          5  services that may be required for the promotion and

          6  enhancement of the district.

          7                 These mid-Manhattan district

          8  management associations will manage the district,

          9  the budget for the first year of operation is

         10  $1,650,000. As required by the BID law, the East

         11  Mid-Manhattan District Management Association mailed

         12  the summary of the City Council resolution to each

         13  owner of real property within the proposed district

         14  at the address shown at the latest City assessment

         15  roll, to such other persons as are registered with

         16  the City to receive tax bills concerning real

         17  property within the district, and to tenants of each

         18  building within the proposed district.

         19                 In addition, DBS arranged for the

         20  publication of a copy of the summary of the

         21  resolution at least once in the City record as

         22  required by law.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Sir, I have a

         25  question.
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          2                 MR. GLATTER: Sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Were the required

          4  notices of today's hearing mailed to all those

          5  property owners and taxpayers in the proposed

          6  district entitled to notice, and when were the

          7  notices mailed?

          8                 MR. GLATTER: They were. They were

          9  mailed out on the 30th of April.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         11                 Did you make sure that additional

         12  outreach to commercial tenants in the district was

         13  done in request and response to the City Planning

         14  Commission's concerns?

         15                 MR. GLATTER: Yes, we did.

         16                 The largest property owners were

         17  contacted directly by the sponsor, and a 2,400 piece

         18  mailing was sent to every commercial tenant in the

         19  district. In addition, the retail merchants, along

         20  in the BID area were contacted by the BID

         21  personally, three times was it? Three times.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         23  questions?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Spigner.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: How does this

          3  affect residential buildings within that area? Are

          4  there any impact on them tax-wise?

          5                 MR. GLATTER: No. There is no

          6  assessment on residential, other than the $1 per

          7  building.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: One dollar

          9  per building per year?

         10                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And where

         12  there is a ground level commercial, how is that

         13  factored in?

         14                 MR. GLATTER: The ground level

         15  commercial would pay the assessment. The assessment

         16  I think is six cents per square foot, so if someone

         17  let's say had a retail store that's 2,000 square

         18  feet, it would come out to $220 a year, $10 a month.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: A hundred

         20  twenty dollars a year for 2,000 square feet.

         21                 MR. GLATTER: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: That's a

         23  moderate size.

         24                 MR. GLATTER: It's a very modest, very

         25  modest number.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Not very

          3  modest, but -- $120, that $120 becomes a part of

          4  their tax responsibility?

          5                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: If they

          7  refuse to pay it, there becomes a lein on the

          8  business?

          9                 MR. GLATTER: That's the BID

         10  assessment that goes to the property owner.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And if they

         12  refuse to pay it, it becomes a lien on the building,

         13  on the property.

         14                 MR. GLATTER: It can, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         17  other questions?

         18                 All right, thank you very much,

         19  Commissioner.

         20                 MR. GLATTER: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Gifford, I'm

         22  sorry. Do you want to question or?

         23                 Mr. Miller, go ahead.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman. I just, as the main sponsor of this
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          2  Intro., want to say that I strongly support the

          3  creation of this BID. I think there has been

          4  considerable outreach done, that my office has

          5  certainly heard a great deal of consensus in favor

          6  of supporting this BID, and I thank the Chair for

          7  his cooperation and my colleague, Council Member

          8  Moskowitz, for her support as well of this BID, I

          9  know she supports it and looks forward to working

         10  with the BID to improve the area and to achieve the

         11  goals set by all of us to be sure that we have

         12  adequate services and improve business in this

         13  important part of Manhattan. And I thank the Chair

         14  for that and I apologize I can't stay for the entire

         15  hearing, but I look forward to its approval, and its

         16  approval on the floor later today.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 Well, I hope things change for you,

         21  Mr. Miller.

         22                 George Kewin, Community Board 5.

         23                 Good morning, sir.

         24                 MR. KEWIN: Good morning, Mr.

         25  Chairman, members of the Committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Good morning.

          3                 MR. KEWIN: I'm here representing

          4  Community Board 5. I'm a member of the Land Use and

          5  Zoning. I am also on the Fifth Avenue, assigned to

          6  the Fifth Avenue BID as a representative and

          7  co-chair of the Landmarks Committee. I was asked to

          8  come down and talk about the resolutions that we

          9  had. We are basically very much in favor of the BID.

         10  We had a couple of stipulations which I'd like to

         11  just read, I have it in front of me. We are in favor

         12  of it, we would like to see if there is an overall

         13  streetscape and signage program put together to

         14  unify it. We'd like to see that the name and image

         15  of the BID be thoughtfully reconceived to reflect

         16  the nature of the district, such as the New York

         17  Style District, or Decorator Design District.

         18                 The third stipulation we had I think

         19  has been fulfilled with further information that we

         20  had. The third was that the annual budget hiring and

         21  management plan be significantly expanded, and

         22  reviewed prior to initiation.

         23                 We were given a very brief

         24  introduction to the BID and there were just six or

         25  seven line items that added up to 1.65 million

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  dollars, and in other information we have it's very

          3  detailed and I think that's not important.

          4                 We weren't asking for more money,

          5  just a better management detail.

          6                 In addition, the Mission Statement,

          7  the information that we have, it's been set up, that

          8  the BID should consult with Community Board 5 prior

          9  to this selection and placement of all street

         10  furniture, including but not limited to planters,

         11  news boxes, street lights, kiosks, information

         12  booths, et cetera. We'd like to see a uniformed

         13  street scape and be able to participate in their

         14  creation.

         15                 And CB 5 reserves the right to

         16  withdrawal from the support of the BID, should

         17  substantive changes of the mission take place.

         18                 Those are the primary ideas that we

         19  had.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         21  questions?

         22                 Thank you very much, sir.

         23                 MR. KEWIN: Okay, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Is there anybody

         25  else who wishes to testify?
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          2                 I know there are a lot of people here

          3  on the issues, so if you are here in favor of the

          4  issue, you can raise your hand.

          5                 Is there anybody here in opposition

          6  to the issue?

          7                 Do you want to speak, sir?

          8                 Please identify yourself.

          9                 MR. CYPRUS: My name is Nicholas

         10  Cyprus. I'm a landlord in the area. I'm also a

         11  landlord in other parts of the City. I appreciate

         12  where in 42nd Street it was necessary to have a BID,

         13  and the Grand Central Partnership. We're talking

         14  about now a part of Manhattan that I think that the

         15  landlords and shopkeepers are doing a wonderful job

         16  maintaining. It's obviously one of the focal points

         17  of the City and it's the center of town.

         18                 I think that that area right now is

         19  really maintained fantastically, and I don't

         20  understand why another taxation sort of thing has to

         21  come into play, when in fact we are maintaining the

         22  sidewalks. The shopkeepers are putting the planters

         23  out, I mean is it just to change light posts?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, that is an

         25  issue I would have assumed you would have taken up
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          2  with the proponents of the BID. But the BID is, by

          3  definition a Business Improvement District, and its

          4  mission is to create the atmosphere that would

          5  enhance the business potential for the community.

          6                 How they do it is up to the

          7  membership of the BID and the people who are

          8  involved in the BID and the people who debate the

          9  budget. It might be as was in the area surrounding

         10  the theatre district, that it might be enhanced

         11  security or sanitation, it might be social services,

         12  as in the Grand Central BID. It depends upon what

         13  the people decide is best for the community. So,

         14  that's a matter that, you know, there is no hard and

         15  fast rule.

         16                 MR. CYPRUS: Okay, because, I mean the

         17  best stores are in that area, the cleaner sidewalks

         18  that I can see are in that area, and it seems that

         19  we are maintaining the area, and the City is doing

         20  its job as well maintaining the area, again, to the

         21  highest standards. I don't see why this is

         22  necessary.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         24                 Any questions?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes. How much
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          2  is this going to cost you?

          3                 If you have a 2,000 foot building,

          4  you say it's going to cost you $120 a year.

          5                 MR. CYPRUS: That's only if it's a

          6  residential building. If there are commercial

          7  buildings, it's going to cost significantly more.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: No, they said

          9  --

         10                 MR. CYPRUS: No, if it was a

         11  residential building with just a commercial ground

         12  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: What do you

         14  estimate it's going to cost you?

         15                 MR. CYPRUS: Into the thousands per

         16  building.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Pardon me?

         18                 MR. CYPRUS: Into the thousands per

         19  building.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Into the

         21  thousands per building?

         22                 MR. CYPRUS: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I share your

         24  sentiment. I think government has the responsibility

         25  to provide the services.
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          2                 I mean, if the guy is going to get

          3  $95,000 a year to do what? I mean, you know, we can

          4  make all the jobs we want, but we shouldn't remove

          5  from government the responsibility to provide the

          6  level of service to make the City acceptable. That's

          7  my opinion, and I've expressed it before. I think

          8  these are flawed concepts, but they seem to be very

          9  popular, and you're going to suffer.

         10                 MR. CYPRUS: I can understand that in

         11  parts of the City that are dilapidated --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: No parts of

         13  the City -- my part of the City is dilapidated,

         14  we've got four. We've got four BIDs on Jamaica

         15  Avenue, from Sutphen Boulevard  to 170th Street we

         16  have got four.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Spigner.

         19                 Thank you, sir.

         20                 The gentleman from the Community

         21  Board, Mr. Kewin, can you come back, please?

         22                 Would you reidentify yourself again,

         23  please?

         24                 MR. KEWIN: Certainly. My name is

         25  George Kewin. I'm a member of Community Board 5. My
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          2  profession is an architect.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Kewin.

          5                 Other than Community Board 5's

          6  request that your budget be enlarged, have you

          7  agreed to the conditions of the Community Boards and

          8  their resolutions?

          9                 MR. KEWIN: Can you repeat that

         10  question?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Oh, I'm sorry.

         12  No, you're with the community board, I wanted

         13  someone from the BID. I apologize. My apologies, Mr.

         14  Kewin.

         15                 MR. KEWIN: That's all right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Is there someone

         17  here on behalf of the BID that can answer a

         18  question?

         19                 Would you come up, please.

         20                 Would you identify yourself, please,

         21  sir?

         22                 MR. STIRTOSE: My name is Jeff

         23  Stritose. I work for Heinz. We are a property owner

         24  in the neighborhood.

         25                 I wanted to address Mr. Cyprus'
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          2  comments.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Sure. Go ahead.

          4  Then I have a couple of questions.

          5                 MR. STIRTOSE: I am, along with Louis

          6  Ruden, the co-sponsor of the establishment of the

          7  BID. One of Mr. Cyprus' comments related to that

          8  this district doesn't need the services that are

          9  required in other BIDs like Times Square or Grand

         10  Central. In terms of Sanitation, for a number of

         11  years the Doe Fund has been providing services and

         12  that's one of the main reasons that the streets are

         13  as clean as they are and the sidewalks are

         14  maintained the way they are.

         15                 Secondly, there's a lot of grandeur

         16  along Madison Avenue and Park Avenue, but the upper

         17  50s along Lexington and Third don't enjoy the same

         18  level of beauty, and there is a wonderful

         19  opportunity to extend what exists along Park and

         20  Madison over to the East and the BID will do that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: This has been a

         22  BID that's really been a long time in the making,

         23  isn't it?

         24                 MR. STIRTOSE: Four years.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I'm sorry. Please
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          2  finish.

          3                 MR. STIRTOSE: I think that while

          4  Madison and Park perhaps won't benefit as much from

          5  the Sanitation or security measures that are part of

          6  the BID's programs. Lexington and Third will and

          7  Madison and Park will benefit in other ways.

          8                 For example, there is a homeless

          9  condition that exists in the district, and the BID

         10  will have a program that will engage those homeless

         11  folks and hook them up with the services that are

         12  out there to serve them.

         13                 That's a very real issue and it's an

         14  important part of our program.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         16                 On behalf of the proponents for the

         17  BID, Community Board 5's request that your budget be

         18  enlarged, I believe you agreed to; is that correct?

         19                 MR. STIRTOSE: I think the request was

         20  that we provide more definition to the budget, and I

         21  believe that we satisfied CB 5 with that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Now, are there

         23  any other conditions of the Community Board in the

         24  resolutions?

         25                 MR. STIRTOSE: No, we support all the
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          2  resolutions by CB 5. We're in agreement with their

          3  requests.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, thank you,

          5  sir.

          6                 MR. STIRTOSE: You're welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          8  other people to be heard on this issue?

          9                 Thank you very much. We've concluded

         10  this portion of the hearing. We will go now to the

         11  Land Use items.

         12                 David.

         13                 We have Land Use 1043, 1077 and 1078.

         14                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Good morning. I'm

         15  David Pechefsky from the City Council Finance

         16  Division. If you will please refer to the second

         17  page of the memo from myself to Chairman Berman. You

         18  will see that there are three Land Use items up for

         19  consideration for a partial exemption from property

         20  taxes. The first of these is Land Use 1043. It's a

         21  Neighborhood Homes Program in Council Member Perkins

         22  District. It's three two-family homes, a ten-year

         23  exemption, first year exempt amount of $5,400, total

         24  ten-year amount of 56,500.

         25                 The second item is Land Use 1077.
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          2  This is a Tenant Interim Lease Program in Council

          3  Member Michels' district. It is one building, three

          4  units, a 28-year exemption, $2,000 for the first

          5  year, $99,000 the full exempt amount.

          6                 And the last one is Land Use 1078.

          7  This is also a TIL program, also in Council Member

          8  Michels' district. One building, 24 units, 28-year

          9  exemption, $16,000 for the first year, $790,000 is

         10  the full exempt amount.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         12  questions?

         13                 Do you have any others?

         14                 MR. PECHEFSKY: There is just those

         15  three.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         17                 There are no other questions?

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Now, if the

         21  Sergeant can try and find at least one more member,

         22  we can proceed.

         23                 Councilman Foster, may we proceed

         24  with the vote now?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

          3                 Would you call the roll, please?

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Berman.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Spigner.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Eisland.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robles.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Koslowitz.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Moskowitz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

         17  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         18  abstentions, the items are adopted. Please sign the

         19  reports.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you. Please

         21  sign the reports. We're in adjournment.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 11:00 a.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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